ASBESTOS SURVEY

Former Hastings Entertainment 2300 West Main Street Norman, Oklahoma

ENERCON Project No. BOKF~00001 July 12, 2018



Prepared For:

Mr. John Leforce BOK Financial 499 West Sheridan Ave., Suite 2500 Oklahoma City, Oklahoma 73102 Office: (405)272-2197 e-mail: JLeforce@bokf.com

Submitted by:

Ben Baggett Industrial Hygienist/Safety Lead bbaggett@enercon.com

Prepared By:

Enercon Services, Inc. 1601 NW Expressway, Suite 1000 Oklahoma City, Oklahoma 73118



Excellence—Every project. Every day.

Reviewed by:

Ed Pack Environmental Specialist

epack@enercon.com

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Sectio	<u>on</u>	<u>Page</u>
EXEC	CUTIVE SUMMARY	i
Recon	mmendations	ii
1.0	INTRODUCTION	1
2.0	FACILITY DESCRIPTION	1
3.0	FIELD ACTIVITIES	1
3.1 3.2 3.3	Review and Visual Assessment	2
4.0	REGULATORY OVERVIEW	2
5.0	FINDINGS, CONCLUSIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS	3
5.1 5.2	Findings and Conclusion	3
6.0	GENERAL COMMENTS	4

- Table 1 Summary of Asbestos-Containing Building Materials Table 2 Summary of Bulk Material Samples & Laboratory Analytical Results

APPENDICES

- A Licenses and Certifications
- B Laboratory Reports of Analyses/Chain of Custody



ASBESTOS SURVEY REPORT

Former Hastings Entertainment 2300 West Main Street Norman, Oklahoma

Enercon Project Number: BOKF~00001 July 12, 2018

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Enercon Services Inc. (ENERCON) conducted an asbestos survey of the above-referenced building on July 2, 2018. The purpose of the asbestos survey was to locate, identify, and quantify asbestos-containing building materials (ACBMs) present in the building. Fifty-seven (57) bulk samples comprising sixty (60) discrete layers were collected from nineteen (19) homogeneous areas.

The following materials were identified to contain asbestos based on laboratory analyses or, according to AHERA protocol, were assumed to contain asbestos:

Summary of Bulk Material Samples & Laboratory Analytical Results

НА	Description	Percent/Type Asbestos	NESHAP Classification	Condition	Estimated Quantity*	
	Black/yellow mix mastic below	5% Chrysotile	G v			
08	carpet squares	PS	Cat I non- friable	Good	35,000 SF†	
	Throughout retail area	PS	madic			
	Cement board with aggregate (Front soffit)	5% Chrysotile	G			
14		PS	Cat II non- friable	Good	1,400 SF	
	(Front Sorrit)	PS	maoic			
15	Cement board with faux stucco (Front fascia)	25% Chrysotile	Cat II non- friable	Good	2,000 SF	
ASSUMED	Exterior panels above glazing Front of building	ASSUMED	Cat II non- friable	Good	750 SF	
ASSUMED	Roofing materials	ASSUMED	Cat I non- friable	Good	35,600 SF	

SF = square feet

Category I includes asbestos-containing packings, gaskets, asphaltic roofing products, resilient flooring, and associated mastics. Category II includes all other non-friable materials

Executive Summary i

^{*}Estimated quantities are based on a cursory field evaluation, and actual quantities may vary significantly, especially if asbestos containing materials are present in hidden and/or inaccessible areas not evaluated as part of this survey.

[†] Note: Apparent ACM mastic from a previous floor covering has been overlaid with non-ACM adhesive and therefore, cannot be fully quantified without removing the existing carpet.



RECOMMENDATIONS

Renovation

Category I and Category II Non-friable Materials

Category I and Category II non-friable materials were identified at the subject site and observed in good condition. Removal must be performed by an Oklahoma licensed asbestos abatement contractor, or general contractor personnel who have received minimum 8-hour training specific to that Category ACM. Removal of the material should be observed and performed under the guidance of a 'competent person' as defined by the Occupational Safety and Health Administration (OSHA) in 29 Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) 1926.1101 Asbestos.

Demolition

Category I Non-friable Materials

According to the EPA, Category I non-friable materials (tar-impregnated roofing felts, asphalt tiles, asphalts and mastics) that are non-friable and will remain non-friable during proposed demolition methods are exempt from NESHAP requirements and need not be removed prior to demolition. This exemption assumes the demolition of the building does not include deliberate burning or activities that powder or otherwise damage and render the materials friable. Additionally, the building debris need not be disposed of as asbestos-containing waste material provided such Category I ACM remains non-friable. However, ENERCON recommends the landfill operator be notified that construction debris contains non-friable asbestos-containing materials.

Category II Non-friable Materials

The asbestos cement board and panels above the glazing are considered a Category II non-friable ACM; however, the material is considered likely to become friable during the demolition operation and must be removed prior to demolition of the structure. Removal must be performed by an Oklahoma licensed asbestos abatement contractor, or general contractor personnel who have received minimum 8-hour training specific to that Category II ACM. Removal of the material should be observed and performed under the guidance of a 'competent person' as defined by the Occupational Safety and Health Administration (OSHA) in 29 Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) 1926.1101 Asbestos.



ASBESTOS SURVEY REPORT

Former Hastings Entertainment 2300 West Main Street Norman, Oklahoma

Enercon Project Number:BOKF~00001 July 12, 2018

1.0 INTRODUCTION

Enercon Services Inc. (ENERCON) conducted an asbestos survey of the Former Hastings Entertainment located at 2300 West Main Street, Norman, Oklahoma. The survey was performed on July 2, 2018 by an AHERA¹ accredited and State of Oklahoma licensed asbestos inspectors in general accordance with Enercon's proposal dated June 19, 2018. The purpose of the asbestos survey was to locate, identify, and quantify asbestos-containing building materials (ACBMs) present in the building. It was understood that the building was scheduled for renovation.

2.0 FACILITY DESCRIPTION

The former Hastings Entertainment building is an approximate 35,686 square foot single story with mezzanine structure reportedly constructed in 1979. The building was vacant at the time of the survey.

3.0 FIELD ACTIVITIES

The survey was performed by Oklahoma AHERA-licensed Asbestos Inspectors Mr. Ben Baggett, (AHERA Asbestos Management Planner No.OK-133989) and Mr. Jerrod 'Hunter' Henrie (AHERA Asbestos Inspector No. OK-401011). Suspect ACM samples were collected in general accordance with the sampling protocols outlined in Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) regulations under 40 Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) 763-Asbestos. A copy of the inspectors' licenses are attached as Appendix A.

3.1 Review and Visual Assessment

The survey consisted of a review of available plans and asbestos-related documents followed by a visual examination of building components and insulating materials to identify those suspected to contain asbestos. Suspect materials identified were categorized into homogeneous sampling areas to facilitate collection and analysis of samples. Building materials identified as concrete, glass, wood, masonry, metal or rubber are not considered suspect ACM. Although reasonable effort was made to survey accessible suspect materials, additional suspect but unsampled materials could be located in walls, in voids, or in other concealed areas.

1

¹ Asbestos Hazard Emergency Response Act



3.2 Physical Assessment

A physical assessment of each homogeneous area of suspect ACM was conducted to assess the friability and condition of the materials. A friable material is defined by the EPA as a material which can be crumbled, pulverized, or reduced to powder by hand pressure when dry. Friability was assessed by physically touching suspect materials.

3.3 Sample Collection and Analysis

Based on results of the visual observation, bulk samples of suspect ACM were collected in general accordance with EPA sampling protocols. Random samples of suspect materials were collected in each homogeneous area. ENERCON collected bulk samples using wet methods as applicable to reduce the potential for fiber release. Samples were placed in sealable containers and labeled with unique sample numbers using an indelible marker.

Fifty-seven (57) bulk samples comprising sixty (60) discrete layers were collected from nineteen (19) homogeneous areas. Bulk samples were submitted under chain of custody to QuanTEM Laboratories, Inc. (QuanTEM) of Oklahoma City, Oklahoma and were analyzed by polarized light microsocopy (PLM) with dispersion staining techniques per EPA's Method for the Determination of Asbestos in Bulk Building Materials (600/R-93-116). The percentage of asbestos, where applicable, was determined by microscopic visual estimation. QuanTEM is accredited under the National Voluntary Laboratory Accreditation Program (NVLAP, Lab Code 101959). Laboratory reports of analyses and the chain of custody is attached as Appendix B.

4.0 REGULATORY OVERVIEW

The asbestos NESHAP (40 CFR Part 61, Subpart M) regulates asbestos fiber emissions and asbestos waste disposal practices. It also requires the identification and classification of existing building materials prior to demolition or renovation activity. Under NESHAP, asbestos-containing building materials are classified as either friable, Category I non-friable or Category II non-friable ACM. Friable materials are those that, when dry, may be crumbled, pulverized or reduced to powder by hand pressure. Category I non-friable ACM includes packings, gaskets, resilient floor coverings and asphalt roofing products containing more than 1% asbestos. Category II non-friable ACM are any materials other than Category I materials that contain more than 1% asbestos.

Regulated ACM (RACM) must be removed before renovation or demolition activities that will disturb the materials. RACM includes:

- Friable ACM;
- Category I non-friable ACM that has become friable or will be subjected to drilling, sanding, grinding, cutting, or abrading; and
- Category II non-friable ACM that could be crumbled, pulverized, or reduced to powder during renovation or demolition activities.

If the amount of RACM exceeds 260 linear feet of pipe insulation, more than 160 square feet in other building components, or will generate more than one cubic meter of waste, the owner or operator must provide the Oklahoma Department of Environmental Quality (ODEQ) with written notification of planned removal activities at least 10 working days prior to the commencement of asbestos abatement activities.



Removal of RACM must be conducted by an appropriately accredited and licensed asbestos abatement contractor.

The Occupational Safety and Health Administration (OSHA) regulates workplace exposure to asbestos in 29 CFR 1926.1101, the asbestos standard for construction. The OSHA standard requires that employee exposure to airborne asbestos fibers be maintained below 0.1 asbestos fibers per cubic centimeter of air (0.1 f/cc) as an eight hour time weighted average. The OSHA standard classifies construction and maintenance activities which could disturb ACM, and specifies work practices and precautions which employers must follow when engaging in each class of regulated work.

In the State of Oklahoma, the OSHA asbestos standard for the construction industry (29 CFR 1926.1101) is administered by the Oklahoma Department of Labor (ODOL) under the Oklahoma Asbestos Control Act (OAC) Title 40 § 450-456. The OAC requires that any asbestos-related activity conducted in a public building be performed by personnel licensed by the ODOL. Asbestos abatement must be performed by ODOL-licensed asbestos abatement contractors in accordance with a work plan or project design prepared by an ODOL-licensed asbestos project designer. Management plans developed for the in-place management of asbestos-containing materials must be developed by an ODOL-licensed management planner. In addition, third party air monitoring should be performed prior to, during, and following the abatement.

5.0 FINDINGS, CONCLUSIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS

5.1 Findings and Conclusion

Table 1 presents a summary of the classification, condition and approximate quantity of identified ACM. Table 2 presents a summary of bulk samples collected and analytical results.

Table 1
Summary of Bulk Material Samples & Laboratory Analytical Results

Summary of Dank Material Samples & Laboratory Mary treat Results									
НА	Description	Percent/Type Asbestos	NESHAP Classification	Condition	Estimated Quantity*				
08	Black/yellow mix mastic below carpet squares Throughout retail area	5% Chrysotile	Cat I non- friable	Good	35,000 SF†				
14	Cement board with aggregate (Front soffit)	5% Chrysotile	Cat II non- friable	Good	1,400 SF				
15	Cement board with faux stucco (Front fascia)	25% Chrysotile	Cat II non- friable	Good	2,000 SF				
ASSUMED	Exterior panels above glazing Front of building	ASSUMED	Cat II non- friable	Good	750 SF				
ASSUMED	Roofing materials	ASSUMED	Cat I non- friable	Good	35,600 SF				

SF = square feet

Category I includes asbestos-containing packings, gaskets, asphaltic roofing products, resilient flooring, and associated mastics. Category II includes all other non-friable materials

^{*}Estimated quantities are based on a cursory field evaluation, and actual quantities may vary significantly, especially if asbestos containing materials are present in hidden and/or inaccessible areas not evaluated as part of this survey.

[†] Note: Apparent ACM mastic from a previous floor covering has been overlaid with non-ACM adhesive and therefore, cannot be fully quantified without removing the existing carpet.



5.2 Recommendations

Renovation

Category I and Category II Non-friable Materials

Category I and Category II non-friable materials were identified at the subject site and observed in good condition. Removal must be performed by an Oklahoma licensed asbestos abatement contractor, or general contractor personnel who have received minimum 8-hour training specific to that Category ACM. Removal of the material should be observed and performed under the guidance of a 'competent person' as defined by the Occupational Safety and Health Administration (OSHA) in 29 Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) 1926.1101 Asbestos.

Demolition

Category I Non-friable Materials

According to the EPA, Category I non-friable materials (tar-impregnated roofing felts, asphalt tiles, asphalts and mastics) that are non-friable and will remain non-friable during proposed demolition methods are exempt from NESHAP requirements and need not be removed prior to demolition. This exemption assumes the demolition of the building does not include deliberate burning or activities that powder or otherwise damage and render the materials friable. Additionally, the building debris need not be disposed of as asbestos-containing waste material provided such Category I ACM remains non-friable. However, ENERCON recommends the landfill operator be notified that construction debris contains non-friable asbestos-containing materials.

Category II Non-friable Materials

The asbestos cement board and panels above the glazing are considered a Category II non-friable ACM; however, the material is considered likely to become friable during the demolition operation and must be removed prior to demolition of the structure. Removal must be performed by an Oklahoma licensed asbestos abatement contractor, or general contractor personnel who have received minimum 8-hour training specific to that Category II ACM. Removal of the material should be observed and performed under the guidance of a 'competent person' as defined by the Occupational Safety and Health Administration (OSHA) in 29 Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) 1926.1101 Asbestos.

6.0 GENERAL COMMENTS

This Asbestos Survey was conducted in a manner consistent with the level of care and skill ordinarily exercised by members of the profession currently practicing under similar conditions in the same locale. The results, findings, conclusions, and recommendations expressed in this report are based on conditions observed during our survey of the building. The information contained in this report is relevant to the date on which this survey was performed, and should not be relied upon to represent conditions at a later date. This report has been prepared on behalf of and exclusively for use by BOK Financial for specific application to their project as discussed. This report is not a bidding document. Contractors or consultants reviewing this report must draw their own conclusions regarding further investigation or remediation deemed necessary. ENERCON does not warrant the work of regulatory agencies, laboratories, or other third parties supplying information which may have been used in the preparation of this report. No warranty, express or implied is made.

Table 2
Summary of Bulk Material Samples & Laboratory Analytical Results

НА	Sample Number	Description	Sample Location	Percent/Type Asbestos	NESHAP Classification	Condition	Estimated Quantity*
	DWGB-01A		Entry	None detected			
01	DWGB-01B	Drywall wallboard (Recent circa)	SW wall near back of retail	None detected	NA	NA	NA
	DWGB-01C	(Recent circa)	SE wall near back of retail	None detected			
	DWJC-02A	•	Entry	None detected			
02	DWJC-02B	Joint compound (Recent circa)	SW wall near back of retail	None detected	NA	NA	NA
	DWJC-02C	(Recent circa)	SE wall near back of retail	None detected			
	DWGB-03A	D 11 111 1	Gallery office	None detected		NA	
03	DWGB-03B	Drywall wallboard (Vintage circa)	Gallery	None detected	NA		NA
	DWGB-03C	(vintage enea)	Gallery	None detected			
	DWJC-04A	•	Gallery office	None detected			
04	DWJC-04B	Joint compound (Recent circa)	Gallery	None detected	NA	NA	NA
	DWJC-04C	(Recent circa)	Gallery	None detected			
	WTEX-05A		Coffee shop	None detected			
	WTEX-05B	W/ 11 .	Coffee shop	None detected]		
05	WTEX-05C	Wall texture Throughout retail area	W wall	None detected	NA	NA	NA
	WTEX-05D	Throughout Tetan area	S wall	None detected			
	WTEX-05E		N wall	None detected	1		
	SAT-06A		At registers	None detected			
06	SAT-06B	2'x4' Suspended ceiling tile Bottom layer	At registers	None detected	NA	NA	NA
	SAT-06C	Bottom layer	At registers	None detected	1		
	SAT-07A	2) 4) 6 1 1 2 2	Gallery office	None detected	NA	NA	NA
07	SAT-07B	2'x4' Suspended ceiling tile Upper layer and gallery	Gallery office	None detected			
	SAT-07C	opportagor and ganory	Gallery office	None detected			

^{*}Estimated quantities are based on a cursory field evaluation, and actual quantities may vary significantly, especially if asbestos containing materials are present in hidden and/or inaccessible areas not evaluated as part of this survey.



Table 2 (cont.)
Summary of Bulk Material Samples & Laboratory Analytical Results

НА	Sample Number	Description	Sample Location	Percent/Type Asbestos	NESHAP Classification	Condition	Estimated Quantity*
	BM-08A	Black/yellow mix mastic below	Retail area	5% Chrysotile	~		
08	BM-08B	carpet squares	Retail area	PS	Cat I non- friable	Good	35,000 SF†
	BM-08C	Throughout retail area	Retail area	PS	Парк		
	GLU-09A	400 400 11 11 11	At registers	None detected			
09	GLU-09B	18"x18" tile with yellow mastic At registers	At registers	None detected	NA	NA	NA
	GLU-09C	At legisters	At registers	None detected			
	CBM-10A		Gallery office	None detected		NA	
10	CBM-10B	Cove base mastic (Yellow)	Gallery office	None detected	NA		NA
	CBM-10C	(Tenow)	Gallery office	None detected			
	CBM-11A		Gallery lookout	None detected			
11	CBM-11B	Cove base mastic (Black/Brown)	Gallery lookout	None detected	NA	NA	NA
	CBM-11C	(Black/Blown)	Gallery lookout	None detected			
	CPM-12A		Gallery office	None detected	NA I	NA	
12	CPM-12B	Carpet mastic	Gallery lookout	None detected			NA
	CPM-12C		Gallery lookout	None detected			
	CBM-13A	Cove base mastic	Retail area	None detected			
13	CBM-13B	(White) associated with green	Retail area	None detected	NA	NA	NA
	CBM-13C	cove base	Retail area	None detected			
	CB-14A		Front Exterior	5% Chrysotile	G . W		
14	CB-14B	Cement board with aggregate (Front soffit)	Front Exterior	PS	Cat II non- friable	Good	1,400 SF
	CB-14C	(Front Source)	Front Exterior	PS	IIIabic		
15	CB-15A	Cement board with faux stucco (Front fascia)	Front Exterior	25% Chrysotile	Cat II non- friable	Good	2,000 SF

[†] Note: Apparent ACM mastic from a previous floor covering has been overlaid with non-ACM adhesive and therefore, cannot be fully quantified without removing the existing carpet.



Table 2 (cont.)
Summary of Bulk Material Samples & Laboratory Analytical Results

НА	Sample Number	Description	Sample Location	Percent/Type Asbestos	NESHAP Classification	Condition	Estimated Quantity*
	DWJC-16A		Men's restroom	None detected			
16	DWJC-16B	Joint compound	Women's restroom	None detected	NA	NA	NA
	DWJC-16C		Hallway	None detected			
	WTEX-17A		Men's restroom	None detected			
17	WTEX-17B	Wall texture	Women's restroom	None detected	NA	NA	NA
	WTEX-17C		Hallway	None detected			
	FT-18A		Men's restroom	None detected		NA NA	
18	FT-18B	12"x12" tile with yellow mastic	Women's restroom	None detected	NA		NA
	FT-18C		Hallway	None detected			
	CBM-19A		Men's restroom	None detected			
19	CBM-19B	Cove base mastic	Women's restroom	None detected	NA	NA	NA
	CBM-19C		Hallway	None detected			
ASS	UMED	Exterior panels above glazing Front of building	Front Exterior	Assumed	Cat II non- friable	Good	750 SF
ASS	UMED	Roofing materials	Roof	Assumed	Cat I non- friable	Good	35,600 SF

ASBESTOS-CONTAINING MATERIALS ARE BOLDED

PS = not analyzed under positive stop protocol

Category I includes asbestos-containing packings, gaskets, asphaltic roofing products, resilient flooring, and associated mastics. Category II includes all other non-friable materials

APPENDIX A

Licenses and Certifications

Oklahoma Department of Labor

Asbestos License

This certifies that **Ben Baggett**has successfully met the certification requirements under the Oklahoma Asbestos Control Act 40 O.S. § 450, et seq. Abatement of Friable Asbestos Materials Rules OAC 380:50 in the following:

Management Planner

Mintelland Melissa M. Houston Labor Commissione

License #:133989

Expires: 04/10/2019

Not intended for identification purposes | Issued :05/07/2018

Oklahoma Department of Labor

Asbestos License

This certifies that Ben Baggett

has successfully met the certification requirements under the Oklahoma Asbestos Control Act 40 O.S. § 450, et seq. Abatement of Friable Asbestos Materials Rules OAC 380:50 in the following:

Project Designer

Melissa M. Houston, Labor Commissioner

License #:143990

Expires: 03/08/2019

Not intended for identification purposes | Issued :05/07/2018



Asbestos License

This certifies that Hunter Henrie

has successfully met the certification requirements under the Oklahoma Asbestos Control Act 40 O.S. § 450, et seq. Abatement of Friable Asbestos Materials Rules OAC 380:50 in the following:

Inspector

Melissa M. Houston, Labor Commissioner License # :401011

Expires: 03/14/2019

Not intended for identification purposes

Issued: 03/26/2018

If found return postage guaranteed:

Oklahoma Department of Labor 3017 N Stiles, Suite 100 Oklahoma City, OK 73105

> 405-521-6100 www.labor.ok.gov

This license certifies only that the license holder has met the requirements to obtain this license and it is not intended for general identification purposes.



APPENDIX B

Laboratory Reports of Analyses/Chain of Custody



Polarized Light Microscopy Asbestos Analysis Report

QuanTEM Lab No. 296553 Client: Enercon - OKC

Account Number: A845 1601 Northwest Expressway

Suite 1000
Date Received: 07/12/2018 Suite 1000
Oklahoma City, OK 73118

Received By: Travis Miller

Date Analyzed: 07/12/2018 Project: 2300 W. Main, Norman

Analyzed By: Dee Ammerman Project Location: N/A Methodology: EPA/600/R-93/116 Project Number: N/A

QuanTEM Sample ID	Client Sample ID	Composition	Color / Description	Asbestos (%)	Non-Asbestos Fiber (%)	Non Fibrous
001	01-DWGB-01A	Homogeneous	White Sheetrock	Asbestos Not Present	Cellulose 15	Gypsum
002	01-DWGB-01B	Homogeneous	White Sheetrock	Asbestos Not Present	Cellulose 15	Gypsum
003	01-DWGB-01C	Homogeneous	White Sheetrock	Asbestos Not Present	Cellulose 15	Gypsum
004	02-DWJC-02A	Homogeneous	White Joint Compound	Asbestos Not Present	NA	CaCO3
005	02-DWJC-02B	Homogeneous	White Joint Compound	Asbestos Not Present	NA	CaCO3
006	02-DWJC-02C	Homogeneous	White Joint Compound	Asbestos Not Present	NA	CaCO3
007	03-DWJC-03A	Homogeneous	White Sheetrock	Asbestos Not Present	Cellulose 15	Gypsum

Unless otherwise noted, upon receipt the condition of the sample was acceptable for analysis.



Polarized Light Microscopy Asbestos Analysis Report

QuanTEM Lab No. 296553 Client: Enercon - OKC

Account Number: A845 1601 Northwest Expressway

Suite 1000
Date Received: 07/12/2018 Suite 1000
Oklahoma City, OK 73118

Received By: Travis Miller

Date Analyzed: 07/12/2018 Project: 2300 W. Main, Norman

Analyzed By: Dee Ammerman Project Location: N/A Methodology: EPA/600/R-93/116 Project Number: N/A

QuanTEM Sample ID	Client Sample ID	Composition	Color / Description	Asbestos (%)	Non-Asbestos Fiber (%)	Non Fibrous
008	03-DWJC-03B	Homogeneous	White Sheetrock	Asbestos Not Present	Cellulose 15	Gypsum
009	03-DWJC-03C	Homogeneous	White Sheetrock	Asbestos Not Present	Cellulose 15	Gypsum
010	04-DWJC-04A	Homogeneous	White Joint Compound	Asbestos Not Present	NA	CaCO3
011	04-DWJC-04B	Homogeneous	White Joint Compound	Asbestos Not Present	NA	CaCO3
012	04-DWJC-04C	Homogeneous	White Joint Compound	Asbestos Not Present	NA	CaCO3
013	05-WTEX-05A	Homogeneous	White Wall Texture	Asbestos Not Present	NA	CaCO3 Paint

Unless otherwise noted, upon receipt the condition of the sample was acceptable for analysis.



Polarized Light Microscopy Asbestos Analysis Report

QuanTEM Lab No. 296553 Client: Enercon - OKC

Account Number: A845 1601 Northwest Expressway

Suite 1000
Date Received: 07/12/2018 Suite 1000
Oklahoma City, OK 73118

Received By: Travis Miller

Date Analyzed: 07/12/2018 Project: 2300 W. Main, Norman

Analyzed By: Dee Ammerman Project Location: N/A Methodology: EPA/600/R-93/116 Project Number: N/A

QuanTEM Sample ID	Client Sample ID	Composition	Color / Description	Asbestos (%)	Non-Asbestos Fiber (%)		Non Fibrous
014	05-WTEX-05B	Homogeneous	White Wall Texture	Asbestos Not Present	NA		CaCO3 Paint
015	05-WTEX-05C	Homogeneous	White Wall Texture	Asbestos Not Present	NA		CaCO3 Paint
016	05-WTEX-05D	Homogeneous	White Wall Texture	Asbestos Not Present	NA		CaCO3 Paint
017	05-WTEX-05E	Homogeneous	White Wall Texture	Asbestos Not Present	NA		CaCO3 Paint
018	06-SAT-06A	Homogeneous	White Ceiling Tile	Asbestos Not Present	Cellulose Glass Fiber	50 30	Perlite Paint
019	06-SAT-06B	Homogeneous	White Ceiling Tile	Asbestos Not Present	Cellulose Glass Fiber	50 30	Perlite Paint
020	06-SAT-06C	Homogeneous	White Ceiling Tile	Asbestos Not Present	Cellulose Glass Fiber	50 30	Perlite Paint

Unless otherwise noted, upon receipt the condition of the sample was acceptable for analysis.



Polarized Light Microscopy Asbestos Analysis Report

QuanTEM Lab No. 296553 Client: Enercon - OKC

Account Number: A845 1601 Northwest Expressway

Suite 1000

Date Received: 07/12/2018 Oklahoma City, OK 73118

Received By: Travis Miller

Date Analyzed: 07/12/2018 Project: 2300 W. Main, Norman

Analyzed By: Dee Ammerman Project Location: N/A Methodology: EPA/600/R-93/116 Project Number: N/A

QuanTEM Sample ID	Client Sample ID	Composition	Color / Description	Asbestos (%)	Non-Asbestos Fiber (%)	Non Fibrous
021	07-SAT-07A	Homogeneous	White Ceiling Tile	Asbestos Not Present	Cellulose 50 Glass Fiber 30	Perlite Paint
022	07-SAT-07B	Homogeneous	White Ceiling Tile	Asbestos Not Present	Cellulose 50 Glass Fiber 30	Perlite Paint
023	07-SAT-07C	Homogeneous	White Ceiling Tile	Asbestos Not Present	Cellulose 50 Glass Fiber 30	
024	08-BM-08A	Homogeneous	Black/Yellow Mastic	Asbestos Present Chrysotile 5	NA	Tar Glue
025	08-BM-08B	**	**	**	Not Analyzed	
Positive Stop 026	08-BM-08C	**	**	**	Not Analyzed	

Positive Stop

Unless otherwise noted, upon receipt the condition of the sample was acceptable for analysis.



Polarized Light Microscopy Asbestos Analysis Report

QuanTEM Lab No. 296553 Client: Enercon - OKC

Account Number: A845 1601 Northwest Expressway

Suite 1000
Date Received: 07/12/2018 Suite 1000
Oklahoma City, OK 73118

Received By: Travis Miller

Date Analyzed: 07/12/2018 Project: 2300 W. Main, Norman

Analyzed By: Dee Ammerman Project Location: N/A Methodology: EPA/600/R-93/116 Project Number: N/A

QuanTEM Sample ID	Client Sample ID	Composition	Color / Description	Asbestos (%)	Non-Asbestos Fiber (%)	Non Fibrous
027	09-GLU-09A	Homogeneous	Yellow Mastic	Asbestos Not Present	NA	Glue CaCO3
028	09-GLU-09B	Homogeneous	Yellow Mastic	Asbestos Not Present	NA	Glue CaCO3
029	09-GLU-09C	Homogeneous	Yellow Mastic	Asbestos Not Present	NA	Glue CaCO3
030	10-CBM-10A	Homogeneous	Yellow Cove Base Mastic	Asbestos Not Present	NA	Glue CaCO3
031	10-CBM-10B	Homogeneous	Yellow Cove Base Mastic	Asbestos Not Present	NA	Glue CaCO3
032	10-CBM-10C	Homogeneous	Yellow Cove Base Mastic	Asbestos Not Present	NA	Glue CaCO3
033	11-CBM-11A	Homogeneous	Brown Cove Base Mastic	Asbestos Not Present	NA	Glue

Unless otherwise noted, upon receipt the condition of the sample was acceptable for analysis.



Polarized Light Microscopy Asbestos Analysis Report

QuanTEM Lab No. 296553 Client: Enercon - OKC

Account Number: A845 1601 Northwest Expressway

Suite 1000

Oklahoma City, OK 73118

Received By: Travis Miller

Date Analyzed: 07/12/2018 Project: 2300 W. Main, Norman

Analyzed By: Dee Ammerman Project Location: N/A Methodology: EPA/600/R-93/116 Project Number: N/A

07/12/2018

Date Received:

QuanTEM Sample ID	Client Sample ID	Composition	Color / Description	Asbestos (%)	Non-Asbestos Fiber (%)	Non Fibrous
034	11-CBM-11B	Homogeneous	Brown Cove Base Mastic	Asbestos Not Present	NA	Glue
035	11-CBM-11C	Homogeneous	Brown Cove Base Mastic	Asbestos Not Present	NA	Glue
036	12-CPM-12A	Homogeneous	Yellow Carpet Mastic	Asbestos Not Present	NA	Glue
037	12-CPM-12B	Homogeneous	Yellow Carpet Mastic	Asbestos Not Present	NA	Glue
038	12-CPM-12C	Homogeneous	Yellow Carpet Mastic	Asbestos Not Present	NA	Glue
039	13-CBM-13A	Homogeneous	White Cove Base Mastic	Asbestos Not Present	NA	Glue CaCO3

Unless otherwise noted, upon receipt the condition of the sample was acceptable for analysis.



Polarized Light Microscopy Asbestos Analysis Report

QuanTEM Lab No. 296553 Client: Enercon - OKC

Account Number: A845 1601 Northwest Expressway

Suite 1000
Date Received: 07/12/2018 Suite 1000
Oklahoma City, OK 73118

Received By: Travis Miller

Date Analyzed: 07/12/2018 Project: 2300 W. Main, Norman

Analyzed By: Dee Ammerman Project Location: N/A Methodology: EPA/600/R-93/116 Project Number: N/A

QuanTEM Sample ID	Client Sample ID	Composition	Color / Description	Asbestos (%)	Non-Asbestos Fiber (%)	Non Fibrous
040	13-CBM-13B	Homogeneous	White Cove Base Mastic	Asbestos Not Present	NA	Glue CaCO3
041	13-CBM-13C	Homogeneous	White Cove Base Mastic	Asbestos Not Present	NA	Glue CaCO3
042	14-CB-14A	Homogeneous	Gray Cement Board	Asbestos Present Chrysotile 25	NA	CaCO3 Binder
043	14-CB-14B	**	**	**	Not Analyzed	
Positive Stop						
044	14-CB-14C	**	**	**	Not Analyzed	
Positive Stop						
045	15-CB-15A	Homogeneous	Gray Cement Board	Asbestos Present Chrysotile 25	NA	CaCO3 Binder
046	16-DWJC-16A	Homogeneous	White Joint Compound	Asbestos Not Present	NA	CaCO3

Unless otherwise noted, upon receipt the condition of the sample was acceptable for analysis.



Polarized Light Microscopy Asbestos Analysis Report

QuanTEM Lab No. 296553 Client: Enercon - OKC

Account Number: A845 1601 Northwest Expressway

Suite 1000
Date Received: 07/12/2018 Suite 1000
Oklahoma City, OK 73118

Received By: Travis Miller

Date Analyzed: 07/12/2018 Project: 2300 W. Main, Norman

Analyzed By: Dee Ammerman Project Location: N/A Methodology: EPA/600/R-93/116 Project Number: N/A

QuanTEM Sample ID	Client Sample ID	Composition	Color / Description	Asbestos (%)	Non-Asbestos Fiber (%)	Non Fibrous
047	16-DWJC-16B	Homogeneous	White Joint Compound	Asbestos Not Present	NA	CaCO3
048	16-DWJC-16C	Homogeneous	White Joint Compound	Asbestos Not Present	NA	CaCO3
049	17-WTEX-17A	Homogeneous	White Wall Texture	Asbestos Not Present	NA	CaCO3 Paint
050	17-WTEX-17B	Homogeneous	White Wall Texture	Asbestos Not Present	NA	CaCO3 Paint
051	17-WTEX-17C	Homogeneous	White Wall Texture	Asbestos Not Present	NA	CaCO3 Paint
052	18-FT-18A	Layered	Tan Floor Tile	Asbestos Not Present	NA	CaCO3 Vinyl

Unless otherwise noted, upon receipt the condition of the sample was acceptable for analysis.



Polarized Light Microscopy Asbestos Analysis Report

QuanTEM Lab No. 296553 Client: Enercon - OKC

Account Number: A845 1601 Northwest Expressway

Suite 1000
Date Received: 07/12/2018 Suite 1000
Oklahoma City, OK 73118

Received By: Travis Miller

Date Analyzed: 07/12/2018 Project: 2300 W. Main, Norman Analyzed By: Dee Ammerman Project Location: N/A

Methodology: EPA/600/R-93/116 Project Number: N/A

QuanTEM Sample ID	Client Sample ID	Composition	Color / Description	Asbestos (%)	Non-Asbestos Fiber (%)	Non Fibrous
052a		Layered	Yellow Mastic	Asbestos Not Present	NA	Glue CaCO3
053	18-FT-18B	Layered	Tan Floor Tile	Asbestos Not Present	NA	CaCO3 Vinyl
053a		Layered	Yellow Mastic	Asbestos Not Present	NA	Glue CaCO3
054	18-FT-18C	Layered	Tan Floor Tile	Asbestos Not Present	NA	CaCO3 Vinyl
054a		Layered	Yellow Mastic	Asbestos Not Present	NA	Glue CaCO3
055	19-CBM-19A	Homogeneous	Yellow Cove Base Mastic	Asbestos Not Present	NA	Glue CaCO3
056	19-CBM-19B	Homogeneous	Yellow Cove Base Mastic	Asbestos Not Present	NA	Glue CaCO3

Unless otherwise noted, upon receipt the condition of the sample was acceptable for analysis.



2033 Heritage Park Dr, Oklahoma City, OK 73120 1.800.822.1650

Polarized Light Microscopy Asbestos Analysis Report

Client: Enercon - OKC QuanTEM Lab No. 296553

1601 Northwest Expressway Account Number: A845

Suite 1000

Date Received: 07/12/2018 Oklahoma City, OK 73118

Travis Miller Received By:

Project: 2300 W. Main, Norman Date Analyzed: 07/12/2018

Analyzed By: Dee Ammerman Project Location: N/A Project Number: N/A Methodology: EPA/600/R-93/116

QuanTEM Client Color / Non-Asbestos Non Fibrous Fiber (%) Sample ID Sample ID Composition Description Asbestos (%)

057 19-CBM-19C Yellow NA Glue Homogeneous Asbestos Not Present CaCO3

Cove Base Mastic

7/12/2018

Dee Ammerman, Analyst Date of Report

NERCON

Excellence—Every project Every day.

1601 NW Expressway, Suite സ്യാ (405) 722-7693 Office

29(553

(405) 722 7694 Fax Oklahoma City, Oklahoma 73118

Chain of Custody/Building Inspection Form Pot. For Disturb.⁴ S S S S 집문 B G S 출 문 문 문 문 함모집 B 8 8 증임 Phy. Cond.³ စ္မ 0 a 8 တ္က စ္မင္မ ი ი 8 유미만 ₀ α Ω იიც တ္ထ Friability² Cat I. Cat II. Sat. Sat. Sat. F Cat I. Cat II. Cati. Gatii ag ag Eg ∰ Cat I. Cat II. Cat. Cat. Cat .. Cat ≡. Cat i. Cat ii. Material Sample Location Shirt check at nes Email: 3)5 I Ł 5 200 <u>تې</u> Project #: 2 5 KY C ۲ HEMMY Hand Quantity 2500 W. Mein, Norma Inspector(s) Rea Bucco とさ となる HA Material Description HA Location 254 CRIN 26 mal texture する rewell)> dymul rewer/z 5/12/0 30,30 10114 Project Site Name/Building Name: Mat. Class¹ တ႙ၴ႗ ა⊼∑≥ တဋာ∑ თ წ ≥ တΣြΣ ი⊵⊵ တဋΣ တဋ္ဌΣ တဋ္∠ 82 A 490 12/1 01 A.S OF1 4 J Q A **4** A SO **∀**/ø 420 Q) J ۵ 8 HA #/Sample # 9 Collection Date: Dusys DAGA SZ DWRC } } 外 Of push 244 7 # B ô g 8

NERCON

Excellence—Every project Every day.

1601 NW Expressway, Suite

(405) 722-7693 Office Oklahoma City, Oklahoma 73118

29(553)

Chain of Custody/Building Inspection Form Page_of_ (405) 722 7694 Fax

Disturb.4 Pot. For 집 함은 B C S 름망 등 중요 를 모 S 중 등 등 Phy. Cond.³ တ 🗅 🖔 SDQ Saq တြက္တ Sag 유미있 იიც 0 a B O o B Friability² Cat∷ Cat∷ Cat. ⊆at. Sati. Satiii Ω<u>gt</u> Ξ Cat⊥. Cat II. Cat. Cat. Cat. Sat≓ Sat≓ Cat∷. Cat∷ F Cat I. Cat II. 866 Material Sample Location Email: 200 CO COL et repreced @ westran Project #: BAR 94/12 कारक 172/12 40/20 ļ Quantity COLE DOX . (Chite mist. Bourdh load ~/spr HA Material Description / Cove have mode (phael/hrom) Proper two representations grow compre 10° F.6 she Cell mat well texting HA Location 7 raysters Inspector(s) Cernet Face Mat. Class¹ ω⊠Σ ω∰Σ တ ဩ Σ σ≅Σ ω≅≥ တΩုΣ თ 💆 🗷 ω⊠Σ ω<u>ω</u> ≥ Project Site Name/Building Name: NAMO 1 2 2 V g u 01 12A 10 A W 五百五 J A 보기 9 HA #/Sample # Collection Date: 3 とか 2570 3 **A** 3 <u>مخ</u> کی 44 <u>ල</u> b X Ĭ لح 짓 + $\tilde{\nabla}$ حـ

	Date/Time:	Δē	
i	四 からを/	Da	
	Received By 2 1 2 5 De	Received By:	
	ë.	je:	
	Below	7	
	Kelinquished By: Angre Date/T	Relinquished By:	THE PARTY NAMED IN COLUMN TO SERVICE AND S
,	r Osline Stop.	Point Count if <3%:	·
		72 Hr. Standard(5 day)	N. N.
	Tumaround Time:	Rush24 Hr72 Hr.	Comments:

ZOUYUZ

Excellence—Every project Every day.

(405) 722-7693 Office 1601 NW Expressway, Sufference

(405) 722 7694 Fax Oklahoma City, Oklahoma 73118

Page

29/553

ž u ŭ Pot Est Chain of Custody/Building Inspection Phy. იიგ იიგ იიც 000 0 **0** B S a B o o C တြက္တ ကျည် Friability² Cati. Catii. Cat I. Cat II. Cat. Cat. Cat. Cati. Catii. Cat .. Cat ... Cat∴ Cat∷ Ωati. Gatii. Cat I. Cat II. Cat ii. Cat iii. Material Sample Location Email: VET 180 Project #: 5 ? 1000M 000 Quantity 15 x 12 Flea +1-Gove by matc HA Material Description / HA Location Inspector(s) Mat. Class Project Site Name/Building Name: ωΩΣ υὧ≥ ა⊵≥ တတ္ဩΣ တၓြΣ თწ⊵ တΩုΣ တ႙ြΣ တ႙ြΣ S LA U **20**4 HA #/Sample # Collection Date: 18 J 上 P 0 0

Ξůã

芝山荒

芝山茂

፷ኴፚ

芝山瓦

ጀዑቪ

Date/Time: Date/Time:

4.8

21-4-81

Received By:

Date/Time: Date/Time:

Relinquished By: Relinquished By:

Positive Stop:

Yes No
Point Count if <3%;
Yes No

72 Hr. __Standard(5 day)

Rush 24 Hr.

Comments:

Tumaround Time:

Received By:

፞፞፝፞፝ዾ፝፞ዹ፟

Carlos dargos . on